
AGENDA
REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING

Wednesday, June 3, 2020 9:30 AM
Large Conference Room

County Buildings are closed to the public due to Covid-19 concerns, this meeting will be 
open to the public via conference call only. The meeting date and time will remain the 

same. You may call at that time to access the hearing by following the instructions below:

To access the meeting call: 1-(312)-626-6799, when prompted enter meeting
ID code: 662 016 552

You can also access the meeting online at: 

https://zoom.us/j/662016552

Open Meeting

Approve Agenda

Approve Minutes

05_27_20 DRAINAGE MINUTES.PDF

Approve Claims For Payment

PAYABLES-DRAINAGE PUBLICATION 06_05_20.PDF

DD 11 WO 294 - Discuss W Possible Action - Investigation Summary

DD 11 WO 294 - INVESTIGATION SUMMARY 05_28_20.PDF

DD 22 WO 276 - Discuss W Possible Action - Repair Summary

DD 22 WO 276 - 6532.4 - REPAIR SUMMARY 06_01_20.PDF

DD 52 WO 215 - Discuss W Possible Action - Crop Damage Claim 2020-4

CROP DAMAGE CLAIM 2020-4 NEW HONEY CREEK QUOTE FOR 
RESEEDING 05_28_20.PDF
DD 52 - CLAIM FOR DAMAGES 2020-4 TRACY BELOW.PDF
CROP DAMAGE CLAIM 2020-4 - TRACEY BELOW W REVISED QUOTE.PDF

Discuss W Possible Action -Wind Turbine Ordinance And Drainage Utility Permit Language 
& Process

HARDIN COUNTY WIND TURBINE ORDINANCE APPROVED BY ZONING 
COMMISSION_20200417.PDF
UTILITY PERMIT APPLICATION ACROSS DRAINAGE DISTRICT.PDF

Other Business

Adjourn Meeting

1.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

8.

Documents:

9.

10.

https://zoom.us/j/662016552


AGENDA
REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING

Wednesday, June 3, 2020 9:30 AM
Large Conference Room

County Buildings are closed to the public due to Covid-19 concerns, this meeting will be 
open to the public via conference call only. The meeting date and time will remain the 

same. You may call at that time to access the hearing by following the instructions below:

To access the meeting call: 1-(312)-626-6799, when prompted enter meeting
ID code: 662 016 552

You can also access the meeting online at: 

https://zoom.us/j/662016552

Open Meeting

Approve Agenda

Approve Minutes

05_27_20 DRAINAGE MINUTES.PDF

Approve Claims For Payment

PAYABLES-DRAINAGE PUBLICATION 06_05_20.PDF

DD 11 WO 294 - Discuss W Possible Action - Investigation Summary

DD 11 WO 294 - INVESTIGATION SUMMARY 05_28_20.PDF

DD 22 WO 276 - Discuss W Possible Action - Repair Summary

DD 22 WO 276 - 6532.4 - REPAIR SUMMARY 06_01_20.PDF

DD 52 WO 215 - Discuss W Possible Action - Crop Damage Claim 2020-4

CROP DAMAGE CLAIM 2020-4 NEW HONEY CREEK QUOTE FOR 
RESEEDING 05_28_20.PDF
DD 52 - CLAIM FOR DAMAGES 2020-4 TRACY BELOW.PDF
CROP DAMAGE CLAIM 2020-4 - TRACEY BELOW W REVISED QUOTE.PDF

Discuss W Possible Action -Wind Turbine Ordinance And Drainage Utility Permit Language 
& Process

HARDIN COUNTY WIND TURBINE ORDINANCE APPROVED BY ZONING 
COMMISSION_20200417.PDF
UTILITY PERMIT APPLICATION ACROSS DRAINAGE DISTRICT.PDF

Other Business

Adjourn Meeting

1.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

8.

Documents:

9.

10.

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/d94a4aa9-d146-40c1-abaa-96b78c36b803






 

 

Hardin County 
 

Drainage Claims with Pay Date of 6/5/2020 
 

 

 

 

Description 
 

Vendor 
 

Amount 
 

 

DD 22 WO 176 - Prof Svcs 4/18/20 to 5/16/20  
 

Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc 
 

836.00 
 

 

DD 26 WO 82 - Prof Svcs 1/26/2019 to 5/16/2020 
 

Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc 
 

118.60 
 

 

DD 52 WO 215 - Tree removal, brush haul off, spray 
 

Honey Creek Land Improvement, LLC 
 

6,930.00 
 

 

DD 124 WO 259 - Tile Repair, Parts, Labor, Equip.  
 

Honey Creek Land Improvement, LLC 
 

14,214.00 
 

 

DD 131 WO 275 - Tile repair, parts, labor, equip. 
 

Honey Creek Land Improvement, LLC 
 

4,040.20 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total Regular Payables: 954.60 
 

 

Total Stamped Warrants: 25,184.20 
 

 

6/3/2020 8:02:05 AM 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 



























J:\6532.4-DD\06-Construction Administration\Report\Contents\6532.4 - Repair Summary.docx 

Drainage District: 

#22 – Hardin County, IA 
Work Order #276 
 

Repair Summary: 

• The contractor performed exploratory excavation around the sinkhole to pinpoint the issue.  A 
2’ length of 16” clay tile was sitting crooked to the alignment of the lateral.  This created two 
1/2” gaps at the joints, which were allowing in soil. 

• An attempt was made to adjust the alignment of the existing clay tile and wrap the joints; 
however, a good joint seal couldn’t be made without disturbing the soil adjacent and below it.  
Two pieces of clay tile were removed for a total of 4 feet.  

• The Contractor utilized 1-1/2” Clean Bedding Rock to re-establish a firm buildable base, 18” 
Dual-Wall HDPE, wire mesh, fabric, and several bags of Quikrete Concrete Mix to perform the 
repair. 

o Bedding rock was installed to the proper elevation.   
o The 18” HDPE was installed (4.04’ per CGA GPS shots) with matching flow lines. 
o Contractor dug out a tunnel below the ends of the new HDPE and the adjacent VCP 

pipes in order to install the fabric and wire mesh. 
o Contractor used roughly 4 bags of concrete mix at collars to go under existing pipe, did 

not mix with water first (as there was already water surrounding the pipe) and chomped 
that under the ends of the pipe to start the collar.  

o The remainder of the concrete collar was created by mixing the bagged concrete on site 
with an electric mixer and then poured in placed and formed.   

o Concrete was allowed to set up for roughly an hour.  Additional bags from the concrete 
mix were used to distribute the load of the remaining bedding rock around the collar 
and allow for backfilling with both rock and soil soon after.   

• During excavation, material was sorted, topsoil vs. subsoil.  The backfill was placed in the correct 
order and the wetland was left in good shape. 

• No seeding was performed. 

Contractor Time and Materials (spent while CGA was on site): 

 

Additional Actions Recommended: 

None unless it not being seeded becomes an issue.  Landowner (Randy Silvest) was asked if he wanted 
to review it before the Contractor left the site and he declined and said it would be fine. 

















































 J:\6532.4-DD\03-Master Planning\6532.4 - Drainage Investigation Summary.docx 

Drainage District: 
#22 – Hardin County, IA 

 

 

 

Investigation Summary: 
• Landowner in the NE¼ of Section 19 (T88N R22W) reported a sinkhole in his wetland area nearby where he 

believes Lateral 1 of DD22 to run.  

• Visual observation discovered a sinkhole with two locations that appeared to be taking in soil in nearby 

proximity to each other.  CGA probed the area with a 4’ tile probe and was unable to hit/located the tile line.  

The sinkhole is consistent with what we would expect to find with a tile line that has a wide joint or damaged 

tile and is taking soil from both sides of the tile.   

 

 

 

Contractor Time and Materials (spent while CGA was on-site): 
None recorded as only visual observation was performed. 
 
 
 

Additional Actions Recommended: 
We recommend this be spot repaired through the lottery process. 

 

Hardin County Work Order: WO00000276
CGA PN: 6532.4

Work Order Investigation Summary
December 2019

Page 1 of 5



Work Order Investigation Summary
December 2019

Page 2 of 5



Work Order Investigation Summary
December 2019

Page 3 of 5



Work Order Investigation Summary
December 2019

Page 4 of 5



Work Order Investigation Summary
December 2019

Page 5 of 5



 

HONEY CREEK LAND IMPROVEMENT, LLC 

29824 Hwy D65 

Union, IA  50258 

918-418-0506 

razorback1977@hotmail.com 

 

INVOICE 

  Date: 5/28/20 

Bill To: 
Hardin County Drainage 

1215 Edgington Ave 

Courthouse – Eldora, IA 50627 

 RESEEDING 

QUOTE 

Date Description Hours/ 

Quantity 

Rate Amount 

 SEED $80 PER ACRE    

 DRILL $150 PER HR    

 LABOR $50 PER HR    

 GROUND PREPARATION $75    

     

 TIME IT WILL TAKE IS ROUGHLY 45 MINUTES    

 AREA WILL BE ROUGHLY 35 ACRES    

     

  3.5 ACRES $ $280 

  45 MINS $200 $150 

 THIS ESTIMATE IS FOR ALFALFA    

     

 TOTAL   $430 

     

Make all checks payable to Honey Creek Land Improvement, LLC 

Thank you for your business! 

 Honey Creek Land Improvement, LLC 

 29824 Hwy D65 Union, IA  50258  Phone: 918-418-0506   

email: razorback1977@hotmail.com 





Hardin County Drainage Claim for Damages 

Claim #____2020-4_________________ District #_____52_______ Work Order #____215___________ 

Township___ Tipton___________ Section___33___ Twp__87___   Rge__21__  Qtr Sec______ 

Parcel Tax IDS_872133276001    ____________________ ________________________________________ 

            _872133276002_____________________  ________________________________________ 

Name            _Tracey Below_____________________________________________________________________ 

Address           _204 South State Street_______________________________________________________________ 

            _Hubbard, IA 50122__________________________________________________________________ 

Phone             _641-485-3396                          __________________________________________________________ 

Email Address  __tracey below@gmail.com____________________________________________________ 

Landowner (if different)  __Shaun Piel – 9768 Magnolia Blossom Drive, Tampa, FL 33626    ________________ 

Claim Type:  Crop Damage 

Crop Year  Fall 2019-Spring 2020_     Crop Year  ____________________  

Type of Crop      _Alfalfa__ __________   Type of Crop      ____________________ 

# Acres Damaged__3.5_____________   # Acres Damaged___________________ 

Yield Per Acre ___________________   Yield Per Acre  ____________________  

 

 Fence Damage 

 Outlet Damage 

 Other:_______________________________________________________________________ 

Desired Compensation – Please note if payment should be split between landlord/tenant. 

 Monetary Payment 

 Repair of Damages 

Tracey Below requests payment be made to landlord Shaun Piel. Payment to be based off contractor 

estimate of reseeding 3.5 acres of alfalfa. Honey Creek Land Improvement has provided a quote in the amount 

of $430.00 

Claimant Signature__________________________________________ Date_____________ 

 

For Office Use Only 

Unit Value  $____________ /bushel  Unit Value  $_____________/bushel 

Crop Damages (Verified Acres X Yield X Unit Value)  $_______________ $_______________ 

Total Amount Approved  $430.00___________________________ 

Approved Signature ___________________________________  Date_______________  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 29 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 4 

ARTICLE XXIII. NON-COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEM PERMITTED USES AND 

COMMERCIAL CONDITIONAL USE WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEM STANDARDS. 

Section 1. PURPOSE. 

The purpose of this Article is to provide a regulatory means for the construction and operation of large 

and small wind energy facilities in Hardin County, subject to reasonable restrictions, which will preserve 

the public health, safety, and welfare. Hardin County adopts these provisions to promote the effective 

and efficient use of the County’s wind energy resource. 

Findings. Hardin County finds and declares that: 

1. Wind energy is an abundant, renewable and nonpolluting energy resource of the County and its

conversion to electricity may reduce dependence on nonrenewable energy sources and

decrease the air and water pollution that results from the use of conventional energy sources.

2. The generation of electricity from properly sited wind energy facilities, including small systems,

can be cost effective and in many cases existing power distribution systems can be used to

transmit electricity from wind-generating stations to utilities or other uses, or energy

consumption at that location can be reduced.

3. Regulation of the siting and installation of wind energy facilities is necessary for the purpose of

protecting the health, safety, and welfare of neighboring property owners and the general

public.

4. Wind energy facilities represent significant potential aesthetic impacts because of their size,

lighting, and shadow flicker effects, if not properly sited.

5. If not properly sited, wind energy facilities may present risks to the property values of adjoining

property owners.

6. Wind energy facilities may be significant sources of noise, which, if unregulated, can negatively

impact adjoining properties.

7. Without proper planning, construction of wind energy facilities can create traffic problems and

damage local roads.

8. If not properly sited, wind energy facilities can interfere with various types of communications.

Section 2. DEFINITIONS. 

Facility Owner shall be the entity or entities having an equity interest in the wind energy facility, 

including their respective successors and assigns. 

Facility Operator is the entity responsible for the day-to-day operation and maintenance of the Wind 

Energy Facility. 

Feeder Line shall mean any power line that carries electrical power from one or more wind turbines or 

individual transformers associated with individual wind turbines to the point of interconnection with the 

electric power grid, in the case of interconnection with the high voltage transmission systems the point 

of interconnection shall be the substation serving the wind energy conversion system. 



2 
 

Dwelling Unit shall mean structures which are meant to and capable of being used for human habitation 

such as a house, apartment, or other place of residence. 

Non-Dwelling Unit shall mean structures which are not meant to be used for human habitation such as 

a garage, storage shed, grain bin, animal confinement buildings, etc. 

Rotor Diameter shall mean the diameter of the circle described by the moving rotor blades. 

Total Height shall mean the highest point, above ground level, reached by a rotor tip or any other part 

of the Wind Energy Conversion System. 

Tower Height shall mean the total height of the Wind Energy Conversion System exclusive of the rotor 

blades. 

Commercial WECS (C-WECS) shall mean a wind energy conversion system of equal to or greater than 

100 kW in total name plate generating capacity. 

Meteorological Tower shall mean, for purposes of this regulation, a tower which is erected primarily to 

measure wind speed and directions plus other data relevant to siting a Wind Energy Conversion System. 

Meteorological towers to not include towers and equipment used by airports, the Iowa Department of 

Transportation, or other applications to monitor weather conditions.   

Non-Commercial WECS shall mean a wind energy conversion system consisting of a wind turbine, a 

tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, which has a rated capacity of less than 100 kW 

and which is intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power. 

Wind Energy Conversion System (WECS) shall mean an electrical generating facility comprised of one or 

more wind turbines and accessory facilities, including but not limited to: power lines, transformers, 

substations, and meteorological towers that operate by converting the kinetic energy of wind into 

electrical energy. The energy may be used on-site or distributed into the electrical grid. 

Wind Turbine shall mean any piece of electrical generating equipment that converts the kinetic energy 

of blowing wind into electrical energy through the use of airfoils or similar devices to capture the wind. 

Section 3. “A”, AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT; “R-1”, SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL; “R-2”, MULTI-FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL; “R-3”, MOBILE HOME PARK DISTRICT; “C”, COMMERCIAL DISTRICT; “M”, 

MANUFACTURING DISTRICT. 

PERMITTED USES: 

Non-Commercial WECS, subject to the following standards: 

1. Tower Height: Parcels smaller than one (1) acre are not recommended for the placement of 

WECS and must seek a Conditional Use Permit. For property sizes between one (1) acre and two 

(2) acres the Total Height shall be limited to eighty (80) feet. For property sizes of two (2) acres 

or more, there is no limitation on tower height, except as imposed by FAA regulations. 

2. Setback: No part of the wind system structure, including guy wire anchors, may extend closer 

than ten (10) feet to the property boundaries of the installation site. 



3 
 

3. Noise: Non-Commercial WECS shall not exceed 60 dBA, as measured at the closest neighboring 

inhabited dwelling. The level, however, may be exceeded during short-term events such as 

utility outages and/or severe windstorms. 

4. Engineer Certification: Applications for Non-Commercial WECS shall be accompanied by 

standard drawings of the wind turbine structure, including the tower, base, and footings. An 

engineering analysis of the tower showing compliance with the applicable regulations and 

certified by a licensed professional engineer shall also be submitted. This analysis is frequently 

supplied by the manufacturer. 

5. Compliance with FAA Regulations: Non-Commercial WECS must comply with applicable FAA 

regulations, including any necessary approvals for installations close to airports. 

6. Compliance with National Electric Code: Applications for Non-Commercial WECS shall be 

accompanied by a line drawing of the electrical components in sufficient detail to allow for a 

determination that the manner of installation conforms to the National Electrical Code. This 

information is frequently supplied by the manufacturer. 

7. Utility Notification: No Non-Commercial WECS shall be installed until evidence has been given 

that the utility company has been informed of the customer's intent to install an interconnected 

customer-owned generator. Off-grid systems shall be exempt from this requirement. 

Section 4. CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR NON-COMMERCIAL WECS AND C-WECS STANDARDS. 

▪ Non-Commercial WECS may be constructed as a principal or accessory use as outlined in Table 

2. Non-Commercial WECS that are constructed as an accessory use to a principal permitted use 

and meet the setback (see Table 1), height (see Section 3.I.1(a)), and power output 

requirements (see definition of Non-Commercial WECS) of this section, shall not require a 

Conditional Use Permit approval, and shall only require building permit approval. All Non-

Commercial WECS that are constructed as a principal permitted use, or Non-Commercial WECS 

that do not meet the setback, height, or power output requirements of this section, shall 

require Conditional Use Permit approval as set forth in Section 4, General Requirements. 

▪ C-WECS shall be permitted as a Conditional Use within any district where the use is listed and 

allowed. (See Table 2) 

▪ No C-WECS, or addition of a Wind Turbine to an existing C-WECS, shall be constructed unless a 

Conditional Use Permit has been issued to the Facility Owner or Facility Operator approving 

construction of the facility under this ordinance. Permit application of the expansion shall be 

based on the total rated capacity, including existing facility but excluding like-kind replacements. 

▪ Any physical modification to an existing and permitted WECS that materially alters the size 

and/or type of Wind Turbines or other equipment shall require a permit modification under this 

Ordinance. Like-kind replacements shall not require a permit modification. 

 

1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

The requirements of this Ordinance shall apply to all WECS proposed after the effective date 

of this Ordinance. WECS for which a required permit has been properly issued prior to the 

effective date of this Ordinance shall not be required to meet the requirements of this 

Ordinance; provided, that any such pre-existing C-WECS, which does not provide energy for 

a continuous period of twelve (12) months, shall meet the requirements of this Ordinance 

prior to recommencing production of energy. Also, no modification or alteration to an 



4 
 

existing WECS shall be allowed without full compliance with this Ordinance. The Hardin 

County Zoning Director shall be responsible for creating a Conditional Use Permit 

Application for WECS to ensure substantial compliance with this ordinance.  

General Requirements for C-WECS: 

a. Color and Finish. Wind Turbines shall be painted a non-reflective color. Blades may be 

black in order to facilitate de-icing. Finishes shall be matte or non-reflective. At C-WECS 

sites, the design of the buildings and related structures shall, to the extent reasonably 

possible, use materials, colors, textures, screening and landscaping that will blend the C-

WECS to the natural setting and existing environment. Exceptions may be made for 

meteorological towers, where concerns exist relative to aerial spray applicators. 

b. Tower configuration. All wind turbines, which are part of a C-WECS, shall be installed 

with a tubular, monopole type tower. Meteorological towers may be guyed. 

c. Lighting. C-WECS sites shall not be artificially lighted, except to the extent required by 

the FAA or other applicable authority. Lighting, including lighting intensity and 

frequency of strobe, shall adhere to but not exceed requirements established by Federal 

Aviation Administration permits and regulations. Red strobe lights are preferred for 

night-time illumination to reduce impacts on migrating birds. Red pulsating 

incandescent lights should be avoided. Exceptions may be made for meteorological 

towers, where concerns exist relative to aerial spray applicators. 

d. Signage. All signage on site shall comply with Hardin County Sign Standards. The 

manufacturer's or owner's company name and/or logo may be placed upon the 

compartment containing the electrical generator, of the WECS. Wind turbines shall not 

be used for displaying any advertising except for reasonable identification of the 

manufacturer or operator of the CWECS sites. 

e. Feeder Lines. All communications and feeder lines, equal to or less than 34.5 kV in 

capacity, installed as part of a C-WECS shall be buried according to Hardin County 

Engineer unless set forth in other applicable requirements. 

f. Waste Disposal. Solid and hazardous wastes, including but not limited to crates, 

packaging materials, damaged or worn parts, as well as used oils and lubricants, shall be 

removed from the site in a time period as established by the Hardin County Health 

Department and disposed of in accordance with all applicable local, state, and federal 

regulations. 

g. Minimum Ground Clearance. The blade tip of any Wind Turbine shall, at its lowest 

point, have ground clearance of no less than seventy-five (75) feet. 

h. Signal Interference. The applicant shall minimize and mitigate any interference with 

electromagnetic communications, such as radio, telephone or television signals caused 

by any WECS.  

i. Federal Aviation Administration. All C-WECS shall comply with FAA standards and 

permits. 

j. Electrical Codes and Standards. All C-WECS and accessory equipment and facilities shall 

comply with the National Electrical Code and other applicable standards. 

k. Safety. 



5 
 

I. All wiring between wind turbines and the C-WECS substation shall be underground. 

If the developer can demonstrate the need for an overhead line and the acceptance 

of landowners for this line, such option may be approved conditionally by the Board 

of Adjustment upon recommendation from the County Engineer. 

II. Wind turbines and meteorological towers shall not be climbable up to 15 feet above 

ground level. 

III. All access doors to wind turbines and meteorological towers and electrical 

equipment shall be locked when not being serviced. 

IV. Appropriate warning signage shall be placed on Wind Turbine towers, electrical 

equipment, and C-WECS entrances. 

V. See tables 1 and 2 for setback requirements. These setbacks and separation 

requirements shall apply to all wind turbines and meteorological towers; provided 

that the Board of Adjustment upon request of the land owner and recommendation 

by the Zoning Commission, after giving notice and opportunity for objection from 

any entity entitled to notice under the procedures contained below herein, may 

reduce the standard setbacks and separation requirements if the intent of this 

Ordinance would be better served thereby.  

VI. For all C-WECS, the manufacturer's engineer or another qualified engineer shall 

certify that the turbine, foundation and tower design of the C-WECS is within 

accepted professional standards, given local soil and climate conditions. 

VII. For all guyed towers, visible and reflective objects, such as plastic sleeves, reflectors 

or tape, shall be placed on the guy wire anchor points and along the outer and 

innermost guy wires up to a height of eight (8) feet above the ground. Visible 

fencing shall be installed around anchor points of guy wires. The property owner 

must sign a notarized acknowledgement and consent form allowing construction of 

the turbine and guyed wires without fencing as required in this Ordinance to be 

presented to the Commission and Board of Adjustment. 

VIII. Landowners shall be given notice and opportunity to object to any variance request 

regardless of any agreement or waiver to the contrary. 

l. Noise. Audible noise due to C-WECS sites operations shall not exceed sixty (60) dBA for 

any period of time, when measured at any dwelling, school, hospital, church, public 

library, long-term care facility, and early care and education facility existing on the date 

of approval of any conditional use permit from the property line. In the event audible 

noise due to C-WECS operations contains a steady tone, such as a whine, screech, or 

hum, the standards for audible noise set forth in subparagraph a of this subsection shall 

be reduced by five (5) dBA. In the event the ambient noise level (exclusive of the 

development in question) exceeds the applicable standard given above, the applicable 

standard shall be adjusted so as to equal the ambient noise level. The ambient noise 

level shall be expressed in terms of the highest whole number sound pressure level in 

dBA, which is succeeded for more than five (5) minutes per hour. Ambient noise levels 

shall be measured at the exterior of potentially affected existing residences, schools, 

hospitals, churches, public libraries, long-term care facility, and early care and education 

facility. Ambient noise level measurement techniques shall employ all practical means of 

reducing the effect of wind generated noise at the microphone. Ambient noise level 



6 
 

measurements may be performed when wind velocities at the proposed project site are 

sufficient to allow wind turbine operation, provided that the wind velocity does not 

exceed thirty (30) mph at the ambient noise measurement location. In the event the 

noise levels resulting from the C-WECS exceed the criteria listed above, a waiver to said 

levels may be granted by the Board of Adjustment upon recommendation by the 

Commission provided that the following has been accomplished:  

 

Written consent from the affected property owners has been obtained stating that they 

are aware of the C-WECS and the noise limitations imposed by this Ordinance, and that 

consent is granted to allow noise levels to exceed the maximum limits otherwise 

allowed; and 

 

If the applicant wishes the waiver to apply to succeeding owners of the property, a 

permanent noise impact easement shall be recorded in the Office of the Hardin 

County Recorder which describes the burdened properties and which advises all 

subsequent owners of the burdened property that noise levels in excess of those 

permitted by this Ordinance may exist on or at the burdened property. 

 

m.   The Facility Owner shall designate and provide as part of the application, and shall 

maintain at the office of the Director, the name and contact information of a local 

agent (local meaning a person whose residence is in Hardin County, Iowa, or a 

business with its primary place of business or its registered agent located in Hardin 

County, Iowa, as listed with the Iowa Secretary of State).  The Facility Owner shall 

authorize the local agent to accept service of legal notice and be served legal notice 

and can be a first point-of-contact by the public. 

 

2. Avoidance and Mitigation of Damages to Public Infrastructure: 

a. Roads. 

a. The applicant shall identify all county, municipal, or township roads to be used for 

the purpose of transporting C-WECS, substation parts, cement, and/or equipment 

for construction, operation, maintenance, and decommissioning of the C-WECS and 

obtain applicable weight and size permits from the impacted jurisdictions prior to 

construction. 

b. At applicant’s cost, the applicant shall conduct a pre-construction survey, in 

coordination with the appropriate jurisdictions to determine existing road 

conditions. The survey shall include photographs and a written agreement to 

document the condition of the public road. The applicant is responsible for ongoing 

road maintenance and dust control measures identified by the Hardin County 

Engineer during all phases of construction. 

c. The applicant shall be responsible for restoring or paying damages as agreed to by 

the applicable road authority sufficient to restore the identified road(s), bridge(s), 

and associated infrastructure to preconstruction conditions. Financial security in a 

manner approved by the County Attorney shall be submitted covering 130% of the 

costs of all required improvements. 



7 
 

d. A separate road agreement which clearly lays out the rights and obligations of the 

county and applicant with respect to the construction, maintenance, and use of 

county roads in connection with development and removal of the C-WECS will be 

required prior to the start of construction and shall be made a condition to the site 

plan review and approval of the C-WECS permit. 

 

b. Drainage. 

a. The applicant shall be responsible for immediate repair of damage to public 

drainage systems stemming from construction, operation, maintenance and 

decommissioning of the C-WECS.  For each C-WECS permit application that includes 

an area with a public drainage system, the applicant shall provide and maintain a 

security deposit in the amount of $50,000.00 to be held in escrow by Hardin County 

and to be used by Hardin County at its discretion to make repairs during the 

productive life of the C-WECS. 

b. To complete such repairs, the applicant shall consult with the County Engineer and if 

recommended by the County Engineer hire appropriate  contractor(s) with the 

approval of the County Engineer, with said costs to be paid from the security 

deposit.   

c. Regarding an application that is within a drainage district, the applicant must apply 

for a Wind Turbine Drainage District Utility Permit and include the approved permit 

with their application for C-WECS. 

 

3. Discontinuation and Decommissioning  

The Facility Owner shall provide to the Director proof of energy production every three (3) 

months per Commercial Wind Turbine. A C-WECS shall be considered a discontinued use 

after twelve (12) months without energy production, unless a plan is developed and 

submitted to and approved by the Director within that time outlining the steps and schedule 

for returning the C-WECS to service within six (6) months of approval. All discontinued C-

WECS and accessory facilities shall be removed to six (6) feet below ground level or to the 

level of the bedrock if less than six (6) feet below ground level within twelve (12) months of 

the discontinuation of use. Each C-WECS shall have a decommissioning plan on file as part of 

the permit application, outlining the anticipated means and cost of removing C-WECS at the 

end of their serviceable life or upon becoming a discontinued use. The cost estimates shall 

be made by a professional engineer licensed in the State of Iowa and approved by the 

County Engineer. The plan (required under Section 5.2(n) below) shall also expressly agree 

to provide at the County’s request, no more often than annually, the financial resources 

available to pay for the decommissioning and removal of the C-WECS and accessory facilities 

which shall include cash reserves, profit/loss statement, assets and liabilities, and signed 

guarantees from any lender holding an interest in the C-WECS or in any assets pledged as 

securities by the Facility Owner or assigns. Financial security in a manner approved by the 

County Attorney shall be submitted covering 130% of the costs of decommissioning. The 

County reserves the right to verify that adequate decommissioning terms are contained in 

the landowner easement.   



8 
 

Section 5. PROCEDURES.  

1. A Conditional Use Permit Application must be submitted for each individual applicable Wind Turbine 

with the applicable fee. This does not prohibit joint proceedings, including notices, public hearings, 

reviews and approvals as appropriate. The Director is hereby authorized to establish the content 

and form of the Conditional Use Permit Application consistent with this ordinance.   

2. In addition to submittal requirements defined for Conditional Use Permit Applications, all 

applications for WECS shall include the following information in form and substance approved by 

the Director: 

a. The name(s) and address of the project applicant. 

b. The name of the project owner. 

c. The legal description of the site where the development is planned. 

d. A description of the project including number, type, name plate generating capacity, tower 

height, rotor diameter, and total height of all wind turbines and means of interconnecting with 

the electrical grid. 

e. Site layout, including location of property lines, wind turbines, electrical wires, interconnection 

points with the electrical grid, all related accessory structures, and all areas to be used for 

staging during construction or for maintenance, including distances and drawn to scale. 

f. Engineer’s certification(s) as required in these supplemental standards. 

g. Documentation of land ownership or legal control of the property. 

h. The latitude and longitude of individual wind turbines. 

i. A USGS topographical map, or map with similar data, of the property and surrounding area, 

including any other WECS within 10 rotor diameters of the proposed WECS. 

j. Existing Resources Inventory. This should include assets and liabilities and executory energy 

contracts. 

k. An acoustical analysis. 

l. Approved FAA Permit Application. 

m. Location of all known communications towers/facilities within two (2) miles of the proposed 

WECS. 

n. Decommissioning plan. 

o. Description of potential impacts on all nearby WECS and other wind resources on adjacent 

properties. 

p. Identification of significant migratory patterns and nesting areas for birds within two (2) miles. 

q. Proof of liability insurance. 

r. The Facility Owner/Facility Operator shall be responsible for obtaining and submitting to the 

Director, at the time the Conditional Use Permit Application is made, showing the names and 

last known addresses of the owners of all property within 5,280 feet (1 mile) of the perimeter of 

the total project development site containing wind energy device(s). Prior to the approval for 

such Conditional Use Permit, notice shall be given by the Director by ordinary mail to all 

adjacent property owners and owners of property within 5,280 feet (1 mile) of the proposed 

site(s) for which the conditional use is requested. 

3. The WECS applicant is responsible in notifying the following state or federal agencies of their 

planned project and allowing said entities 120 days to do a preliminary review. Documentation of 

notification by certified mail to these agencies, and any reports from the agencies must be provided 

to the county 30 days prior to the Board of Adjustment first public hearing on the matter. If the 



9 
 

entity does not act within 120 days, the plan may be deemed approved by the entity. It is 

recommended that any issues be addressed prior to the public hearing. 

 

▪ Army Corps of Engineers 

▪ Bureau of Land Management 

▪ U.S. Fish and Wildlife 

▪ U.S. Department of Agriculture (Local FSA and NRCS) 

▪ Environmental Protection Administration (EPA) 

▪ Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 

▪ National Weather Service 

▪ Iowa Pipeline Association 

 

4. The WECS applicant is responsible in notifying the following boards, commissions, and bodies of 

their planned project and allowing said entities 120 days to do a preliminary review. The WECS 

application must have attached to it written approval or denial from each and every board, 

commission, and body listed below.  An incomplete application will not be considered. A completed 

application will contain written verification of approval or denial from each and every board, 

commission, and body listed below. Such approval or denial shall be on a form provided by the 

Director.  No application will be approved without the written approval of all the below-listed 

boards, commissions, and bodies. In the event of a denial, by a board, commission, or body listed 

below the applicant and applicable body, commission, or body listed below shall make a good faith 

effort to resolve the reason for the denial. An aggrieved applicant can then seek relief from the 

Board of Adjustment. 

 

▪ Hardin County Conservation Board 

▪ Hardin County E911 Service Board 

▪ Hardin County Emergency Management Commission 

▪ Private and Public Hardin County Drainage District Trustees 

▪ Hardin County Drainage Clerk 

▪ Hardin County and local EMS Fire and Rescue 

▪ Hardin County Engineer’s Office 

▪ Hardin County Firemen’s Association 

▪ Hardin County EMS Council 

▪ Hardin County Solid Waste Commission 

▪ Hardin County Board of Health 

▪ Iowa River Trail – Hardin Commission 

▪ Pioneer Cemetery Commission 

▪ Iowa Falls Airport 

▪ Eldora Airport 

▪ Ackley Airport 

▪ Radcliffe Airport 

▪ South Fork Watershed Alliance 

 



10 
 

Section 6. RECORDING REQUIREMENT 

The applicant shall be responsible for recording with the Hardin County Recorder’s Office, within 60 days 

of completed construction of each C-WECS structure, documentation sufficient to identify by longitude 

and latitude and depth of all structures and underground utilities comprising each C-WECS, for deed and 

abstracting purposes.   

Section 7. FEES. 

The building permit fee and conditional use permit fee per tower shall be set by the Hardin County 

Board of Supervisors. This fee is due upon submission of application for a WECS project. Please see 

attached fee schedule. 

Section 8. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. 

If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such 

adjudication shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any section, provision, or part 

thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 9. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

That this ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption and publication as provided by law. By 

enactment, the previous Article XXIII of Ordinance No. 29 (Hardin County Zoning Ordinance) is hereby 

repealed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



11 
 

TABLE 1 

Setback Requirements for Non-Commercial WECS, C-WECS, and Meteorological Towers 

 Non-Commercial WECS Commercial WECS Meteorological Tower 

Property Lines*ᶧ 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 

Dwelling Unitsᶧ 

Greater of 
Manufacturer’s 
Recommended Safety 
Setback Distance or 3 X 
Total Height 

Greater of 

Manufacturer’s 

Recommended Safety 

Setback Distance or 3 X 

Total Height 

Greater of 
Manufacturer’s 
Recommended Safety 
Setback Distance or 3 X 
Total Height 

Non-Dwelling Unitsᶧ 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 

Public Right-of-Way** 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 

Communication or 
Electrical Lines 

2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 

Cemeteries 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 2 X Total Height 

Other WECS NONE 

(1.1 X Total Height of 

Turbine 1) + (1.1 X Total 

Height of Turbine 2) 

NONE 

*Distance may be satisfied in whole or in part through acquisition of an easement from adjacent 
property owner 
**Including above ground utility such as railroad and power lines 
ᶧ A waiver could be obtained from affected property owners to lower this setback requirement to no less 
than 1.1 X the Total Height 
 

TABLE 2 

Zoning District Regulations for Use of Non-Commercial WECS, C-WECS, and Meteorological Towers 

 Non-Commercial WECS Commercial WECS Meteorological Tower 

Agricultural (A) A CUP CUP 

Commercial (C) A CUP CUP 

Conservation-Greenbelt 
(G) 

X X X 

Manufacturing (M) A CUP CUP 

Mobile Home Park (R-3) A X X 

Multi-Family Residential 
(R-2) 

A X X 

Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) 

A X X 

Wilderness Preserve 
(W) 

X X X 

CUP – Requires a Conditional Use Permit, A – Allowed, X – Not allowed 



ϭϮϭϱ ��'/E'dKE��s�͕͘ ^h/d��ϭ
�>�KZ�͕ /� ϱϬϲϮϳ
;ϲϰϭͿ ϵϯϵͲϴϭϬϴ

W�'��ϭ

+$5',1�&2817<�'5$,1$*(�',675,&7
87,/,7<�3(50,7�$33/,&$7,21

$SSOLFDQW� BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
&RPSDQ\�1DPH

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
$GGUHVV

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
&LW\ 6WDWH =LS

$SSOLFDQW�&RQWDFW� BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB �BBBBBBBB��BBBBBBBB�� BBBBBBBBBBB
1DPH 3KRQH

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
(PDLO

8WLOLW\�7\SH� BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB

'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�V��&URVVHG� BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB

)DFLOLWLHV�&URVVHG��VSHFLILF�WLOH��RSHQ�GLWFK������BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB

'HVFULSWLRQ�RI�:RUN� BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB

3XUVXDQW�WR�&RGH�RI�,RZD�6HFWLRQ����������DSSURYDO�LV�KHUHE\�UHTXHVWHG�IRU�WKH�ULJKW��SULYLOHJH�DQG�DXWKRULW\�WR�FRQVWUXFW��
RSHUDWH�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�XWLOLWLHV�RQ��RYHU��DFURVV�RU�EHQHDWK�HVWDEOLVKHG�+DUGLQ�&RXQW\�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFWV��VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�
DWWDFKHG�5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�&RQVWUXFWLRQ�2Q��2YHU��$FURVV�RU�%HQHDWK�(VWDEOLVKHG�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW� )DLOXUH�WR�FRPSO\�
ZLWK�VDLG�UHTXLUHPHQWV�VKDOO�EH�JURXQG�IRU�UHYRFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SHUPLW�E\�WKH�+DUGLQ�&RXQW\�%RDUG�RI�6XSHUYLVRUV�

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
$SSOLFDQW�6LJQDWXUH 'DWH

6XEPLW�)RUP DQG�/RFDWLRQ�3ODQ�7R� +DUGLQ�&RXQW\�$XGLWRU¶V�2IILFH
$WWQ��'UDLQDJH�&OHUN
�����(GJLQJWRQ�$YH��6XLWH��
(OGRUD��,$������
)D[���������������
GUDLQDJH#KDUGLQFRXQW\LD�JRY

)RU�2IILFH�8VH�2QO\

$SSOLFDWLRQ�$SSURYDO�

%\��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB 'DWH��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
%RDUG�RI�6XSHUYLVRU�&KDLUPDQ��$FWLQJ�DV�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�7UXVWHH

$33529('�3(50,7����BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB

�/RFDWLRQ�SODQ�RI�
SURSRVHG�XWLOLW\�PXVW�

EH�DWWDFKHG��



ϭϮϭϱ ��'/E'dKE��s�͕͘ ^h/d��ϭ
�>�KZ�͕ /� ϱϬϲϮϳ
;ϲϰϭͿ ϵϯϵͲϴϭϬϴ

W�'��Ϯ

5(48,5(0(176�)25�&216758&7,21�21��29(5��$&5266
25�%(1($7+�(67$%/,6+('�'5$,1$*(�',675,&7

8SRQ�LVVXDQFH�RI�D�SHUPLW�IRU�XWLOLWLHV�RQ��RYHU��DFURVV�RU�EHQHDWK�HVWDEOLVKHG�+DUGLQ�&RXQW\�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFWV��WKH�
DSSOLFDQW�VKDOO�EH�JRYHUQHG�E\�WKHVH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�VKDOO�FRPSO\�ZLWK�DOO�FRQGLWLRQV�FRQWDLQHG KHUHLQ�

�� 7KH�$SSOLFDQW�VKDOO�IXUQLVK�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW��RU�LWV�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH��SODWV�VKRZLQJ�WKH�H[DFW�ORFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
SURSRVHG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��,I�LW�LV�IRXQG�WKDW�VXFK�ORFDWLRQV�DUH�LQ�FRQIOLFW�ZLWK�WKH�SUHVHQW�RU�SURSRVHG�IDFLOLWLHV�DQG�
WKDW�D�PRUH�GHVLUDEOH�ORFDWLRQ�LV�SRVVLEOH��WKH�$SSOLFDQW�VKDOO�UHYLHZ�VXFK�SRVVLEOH�DOLJQPHQW�FKDQJHV��1R�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�LV�WR�FRPPHQFH�ZLWK�WKH�GUDLQDJH�IDFLOLW\�ZLWKRXW�DQ�DSSURYHG�DSSOLFDWLRQ�

�� $SSOLFDQW�VKDOO�FRPSO\�ZLWK�,RZD�2QH�&DOO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�SULRU�WR�FRPPHQFLQJ�DQ\�ZRUN�

�� 7KH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW VKDOO�SURYLGH�$SSOLFDQW�DFFHVV�WR�PDSV�RU�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�ORFDWLRQ�RI�DOO�
NQRZQ�GUDLQDJH�GLVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV�VR�WKDW�UHDVRQDEOH�FDUH�PD\�EH�WDNHQ�E\�$SSOLFDQW�WR�DYRLG�XQ�QHFHVVDU\�
GDPDJH�WR�VDLG�GUDLQDJH�GLVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV�

�� 7KH�$SSOLFDQW�VKDOO�KROG�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�KDUPOHVV�IURP�DQ\�GDPDJH�WKDW�PD\�UHVXOW�WR�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�
IDFLOLW\�EHFDXVH�RI�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RU�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�WKH�XWLOLW\��DQG�VKDOO�UHLPEXUVH�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IRU�DQ\�
H[SHQGLWXUHV�WKDW�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�PD\�KDYH�WR�PDNH�RQ�VDLG�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�
$SSOLFDQW¶V�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�XWLOLWLHV��RU�WKHLU�VXEVHTXHQW�UHSDLU�RU�PRGLILFDWLRQ�

�� 7KH�$SSOLFDQW�VKDOO�WDNH�DOO�UHDVRQDEOH�SUHFDXWLRQ�GXULQJ�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RI�VDLG�XWLOLW\�WR�SURWHFW�DQG�VDIHJXDUG�
WKH�OLYHV�DQG�SURSHUW\�RI�WKH�SXEOLF�DQG�DGMDFHQW�SURSHUW\�RZQHUV�DQG�VKDOO�KROG�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�KDUPOHVV�
IURP�DQ\�GDPDJHV�RU�ORVVHV�WKDW�PD\�EH�VXVWDLQHG�E\�DGMDFHQW�SURSHUW\�RZQHUV�RQ�DFFRXQW�RI�VXFK�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�
RSHUDWLRQV��)XUWKHU��$SSOLFDQW�DJUHHV�WR�UHSODFH��UHSDLU�RU�UHLPEXUVH�DOO�GDPDJHV�WR�SULYDWH�SURSHUW\�RFFDVLRQHG�
E\�$SSOLFDQW¶V�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�VXEVHTXHQW�PRGLILFDWLRQ�RU�UHSDLUV�

�� 7KH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�DVVXPHV�QR�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�GDPDJHV�WR�WKH�$SSOLFDQWV�SURSHUW\�RFFDVLRQHG�E\�DQ\�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RU�PDLQWHQDQFH�RSHUDWLRQ�RI�VDLG�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV��VXEVHTXHQW�WR�$SSOLFDQWV�LQVWDOODWLRQ�

�� $�FRS\�RI�D�FHUWLILFDWH�RI�LQVXUDQFH�QDPLQJ�WKH�&RXQW\�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�DV�DGGLWLRQDO�LQVXUHG�IRU�WKHLU�SHUPLW�ZRUN�
VKDOO�EH�SURYLGHG�WR�WKH�&RXQW\�$XGLWRU�SULRU�WR�LQVWDOODWLRQ��7KH�OLPLW�RI�OLDELOLW\�XQGHU�WKH�LQVXUDQFH�SROLF\�VKDOO�QRW�
EH�OHVV�WKDQ������������SHU�RFFXUUHQFH�

�� 7KH�$SSOLFDQW�DJUHHV�WR�JLYH�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�WZHQW\�IRXU������KRXUV��6DWXUGD\�DQG�6XQGD\�H[FOXGHG��QRWLFH�
RI�LWV�LQWHQWLRQ�WR�FRPPHQFH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RQ�DQ\�ODQGV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�MXULVGLFWLRQ�RI�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW��6DLG�QRWLFH�
VKDOO�EH�PDGH�LQ�ZULWLQJ�WR�WKH�&RXQW\�$XGLWRU�RU�WR�WKH�GHVLJQDWHG�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�

�� 7KH�$SSOLFDQW�DJUHHV�WR�SODFH�SHUPDQHQW��YLVLEOH�PDUNHUV�RU�PRQXPHQWV�DW�ORFDWLRQV�ZKHUH�XWLOLW\�FURVVHV�
'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV��7KHVH�PRQXPHQWV�RU�PDUNHUV�VKDOO�LGHQWLI\�WKH�RZQHUV�QDPH��DGGUHVV�DQG�SKRQH�
QXPEHU�

��� 7KH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�7UXVWHHV�PD\�DSSRLQW�D�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�WR�LQVSHFW�DQG�DSSURYH�DOO�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DFURVV�
'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV�DV�SDUW�RI�WKLV�SHUPLW��$OO�FRPSHQVDWLRQ��ZDJHV��PLOHDJH�DQG�RWKHU�H[SHQVHV�IRU�WKLV�
UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�ZLOO�EH�SDLG�E\�WKH�$SSOLFDQW��,W�ZLOO�EH�WKH�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�RI�WKH�$SSOLFDQW�WR�PDNH�DOO�FRQWDFWV�ZLWK�
SULYDWH�SDUWLHV��DGMDFHQW�RZQHUV�RSHUDWRUV��WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�ORFDWLRQ�RI�SULYDWH�GUDLQDJH�IDFLOLWLHV��6DLG�
UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�ZLOO�DOVR�LQVSHFW�DOO�FURVVLQJ�RI�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV�DQG�PD\��LI�UHTXLUHG��REVHUYH�WKH�FURVVLQJ�
RI�SULYDWH�GUDLQDJH�IDFLOLWLHV��DQG�VKDOO�KDYH�WKH�DXWKRULW\�WR�UHTXLUH�WKH�$SSOLFDQW�WR�H[FDYDWH�DQG�H[SRVH�WKH�
FURVVLQJ�RI�DQ\�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLW\�ZKHUH�WKH�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�EHOLHYHV�LW�SUXGHQW�WR�YLVXDOO\�H[DPLQH�
$SSOLFDQWV�FURVVLQJ�RI�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLW\��)XUWKHU��VDLG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�KDV�WKH�DXWKRULW\�WR�VXVSHQG�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�LQVWDOODWLRQ�E\�WKH�$SSOLFDQW�ZLWKLQ�DQ\�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�MXULVGLFWLRQ�E\�YHUEDO�RUGHU�WR�WKH�
FRQWUDFWRU�DW�WKH�VLWH�DQG�D�WHOHSKRQH�FDOO�WR�$SSOLFDQWV�FRQWDFW�SHUVRQ�OLVWHG�RQ SDJH���ZLWKLQ�VL[�����KRXUV�RI�WKH�
YHUEDO�RUGHU�



ϭϮϭϱ ��'/E'dKE��s�͕͘ ^h/d��ϭ
�>�KZ�͕ /� ϱϬϲϮϳ
;ϲϰϭͿ ϵϯϵͲϴϭϬϴ

W�'��ϯ

��� 7KH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�$SSOLFDQWV�LQVWDOODWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�FDUULHG�RQ�LQ�VXFK�D�PDQQHU�DV�WR�QRW�
LQWHUIHUH�ZLWK�RU�LQWHUUXSW�WKH�IXQFWLRQ�RI�VDLG�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV�ZLWKRXW�WKH�H[SUHVV�ZULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�
'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH��,Q�WKH�HYHQW�LW�EHFRPHV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�WHPSRUDULO\�VWRS�WKH�IORZ�RI�ZDWHU��WKH�
IROORZLQJ�VKDOO�EH�FRPSOHWHG�E\�WKH�$SSOLFDQW�

D� ,I�WKH�FURVVLQJ�LQYROYHV�D�WLOH�OLQH��WKH�UHSODFHPHQW�RI�WLOH�ZLWK DSSURYHG�PDWHULDOV��LQ�WKH�PDQQHU�DSSURYHG�
E\�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFWV�GHVLJQDWHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH� VKDOO�EH�SHUIRUPHG�DV�UDSLGO\�DV�SRVVLEOH��,I�WKH�
DSSURYHG�PHWKRG�RI�UHSDLU�LV�LPSRVVLEOH�DQG�WKH�YROXPH�RI�ZDWHU�IORZLQJ�LQ�WKH�WLOH�LV�VXIILFLHQW�WR�FUHDWH�
WKH�SRVVLELOLW\�RI�FURS�ORVV�RU�SURSHUW\�GDPDJH��WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�ZLOO�EH�SHUPLWWHG�WR�WHPSRUDULO\�EORFN�WKH�
WLOH�OLQH�WR�SUHYHQW�WKH�IORZ�RI�WKLV�WLOH�ZDWHU�LQWR�WKH�SLSHOLQH��RU�WLOH�OLQH�GLWFK��,Q�WKH�HYHQW�WKLV�WLOH�OLQH�LV�VR�
WHPSRUDULO\�EORFNHG��WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�ZLOO�EH�H[SHFWHG�WR�SURYLGH�VXIILFLHQW�SXPSLQJ�HTXLSPHQW�WR�SXPS�WKH�
LPSRXQGHG�WLOH�ZDWHU�DFURVV�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�GLWFK�WR�WKH�XQGLVWXUEHG�WLOH�OLQH��6XFK�WHPSRUDU\�EORFNDJHV�
RI�VDLG�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�WLOH�OLQHV�ZLOO�EH�UHPRYHG�D�UDSLGO\�DV�SRVVLEOH�DQG�DQ\�WLOH�UHSDLUV�FDXVHG�E\�WKLV�
EORFNDJH�ZLOO�EH�LPPHGLDWHO\�UHSDLUHG�DW�WKH�$SSOLFDQWV�H[SHQVH�

E� ,I�WKH�FURVVLQJ�LQYROYHV�DQ�RSHQ�GLWFK�WKDW�LV�FDUU\LQJ�VXIILFLHQW�IORZ�RI�ZDWHU�WR�PDNH�LW�QHFHVVDU\�WR�SODFH�
D�WHPSRUDU\�GDP�DFURVV�VDLG�RSHQ�GLWFK��VXFK�WHPSRUDU\�GDPV�PD\�EH�FRQVWUXFWHG�RQO\�XSRQ�DSSURYDO�
IURP�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�GHVLJQDWHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH��7KH�PD[LPXP�HOHYDWLRQ�RI�WKLV�LPSRXQGHG�ZDWHU�
VKDOO�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�GHVLJQDWHG�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�DQG�DOO�H[FHVV�ZDWHU�PXVW�EH�
DOORZHG�WR�IORZ�DFURVV�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�GLWFK�WKURXJK�HLWKHU�D�FORVHG�PHWDO�FXOYHUW�SLSH�RU�E\�SXPSLQJ��$OO�
WHPSRUDU\�GDP�VWUXFWXUHV�DUH�WR�EH�UHPRYHG�DV�VRRQ�DV�WKH�FURVVLQJ�LV�FRPSOHWHG��7KH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�
UHPRYDO�RI�WKHVH�GDPV�VKDOO�EH�LQ�VXFK�D�PDQQHU�WKDW�WKH�VPRRWK�DQG�HIILFLHQW�IXQFWLRQ�RI�WKH�GUDLQDJH�
GLWFK�LV�QRW�LPSDLUHG��ZLWK�DOO�FRVWV�DQG�GDPDJHV�ERUQH�E\�$SSOLFDQW��

��� 7KH�$SSOLFDQW�ZLOO�DW�DQ\�WLPH�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�WKH�FRPPHQFHPHQW�RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��DQG�DW�$SSOLFDQWV�VROH�H[SHQVH��
UHFRQVWUXFW�RU�UHSODFH�LWV�LQVWDOODWLRQ�DV�PD\�EH�QHFHVVDU\�WR�FRQIRUP�WR�QHZ�JUDGH�RU�DOLJQPHQWV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�
PDLQWHQDQFH�RU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RSHUDWLRQV�E\�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�DQ\�RI�LWV�GUDLQDJH�IDFLOLWLHV��
$SSOLFDQW�DJUHHV�WR�GR�WKLV�ZLWKLQ�IRUW\�ILYH������GD\V�RI�UHFHLSW�RI�ZULWWHQ�UHTXHVW�IURP�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW��RU�
VXFK�ORQJHU�WLPH�SHULRG�DV�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�PD\�VSHFLI\��ZLWKRXW�FRVW�WR�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW��6XFK�
UHFRQVWUXFWLRQ�RU�UHDOLJQPHQW�RI�$SSOLFDQWV�LPSURYHPHQWV�VKDOO�EH�PDGH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DQG�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�
'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�RU�LWV�GHVLJQDWHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH��,I�WKH�$SSOLFDQW�LV�XQDEOH�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWKLQ�WKH�WLPH�SHULRG�
VSHFLILHG�DERYH��WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�PD\�FDXVH�WKH�ZRUN�WR�EH�GRQH�DQG�WKH�$SSOLFDQW�ZLOO�SD\�WKH�FRVW�WKHUHRI�
XSRQ�UHFHLSW�RI�D�VWDWHPHQW�RI�VXFK�FRVWV�

��� &5266,1*�2)�23(1�',7&+�)$&,/,7,(6��8WLOLW\�FURVVLQJV�VKDOO�EH�FRQVWUXFWHG�DV�IROORZV��DV�GLUHFWHG�E\�WKH�
GHVLJQDWHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RI�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�

D� 3DVVDJH�RI�LQVWDOODWLRQ�LQ�D�KRUL]RQWDO�SODQH�ILYH�IHHW���¶��EHORZ�GHVLJQ�JUDGH�RI�GUDLQDJH�GLWFK��DV�
HVWDEOLVKHG�E\�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�

E� 7KH�DERYH�GHSWK�WR�H[WHQG�WR�D�SRLQW�WZR�����WLPHV�WKH�GHVLJQ�EDVH�ZLGWK�RI�GLWFK�HLWKHU�VLGH�RI�FHQWHUOLQH�
RI�GUDLQDJH�GLWFK��PHDVXUHG�DORQJ�WKH�FHQWHUOLQH�RI�XWLOLW\��XQOHVV�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�EDVH�ZLGWK�LV�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�
WKH�GHVLJQ�EDVHV�ZLGWK��,I�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�EDVH�ZLGWK�LV�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�WKH�GHVLJQ�ZLWK��WKH�GHSWK�LV�WR�H[WHQG�WR�
D�SRLQW�WZR�����WLPHV�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�ZLGWK�

F� 7KH�UDWH�RI�VORSH�IRU�WUDQVLWLRQ�IURP�QRUPDO�XWLOLW\�OD\LQJ�GHSWK�RI�FURVVLQJV�RI�GUDLQDJH�GLWFKHV�VKDOO�QRW�
EH�VWHHSHU�WKDQ�����

G� ,I�VXFK�GLWFK�FURVVLQJV�RFFXU�DW�SRLQWV�RI�RXWOHWV�RI�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�RU�SULYDWH�WLOH�OLQHV�RU�ZLWKLQ�WZHQW\�
ILYH�IHHW����¶��RI�VDLG�RXWOHWV��VXFK�RXWOHWV�PXVW�EH�UHORFDWHG�WR�D�SRLQW�QRW�OHVV�WKDQ�WZHQW\�ILYH�IHHW����¶��
IURP�VXFK�FURVVLQJV��6XFK�UHORFDWLRQV�VKDOO�EH�DW�WKH�H[SHQVH�RI�WKH�$SSOLFDQW�DQG�DV�GLUHFWHG�E\�WKH�
UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RI�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�



ϭϮϭϱ ��'/E'dKE��s�͕͘ ^h/d��ϭ
�>�KZ�͕ /� ϱϬϲϮϳ
;ϲϰϭͿ ϵϯϵͲϴϭϬϴ

W�'��ϰ

��� &5266,1*�2)�'5$,1$*(�',675,&7�7,/(�/,1(6��8WLOLW\�FURVVLQJV�VKDOO�EH�FRQVWUXFWHG�DV�IROORZV��DV�GLUHFWHG�
E\�WKH�GHVLJQDWHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RI�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�

D� $OO�SURSRVHG�LQVWDOODWLRQV�PXVW�EH�SODFHG�XQGHU�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�WLOH�OLQHV��7KHVH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�PD\�EH�ZDLYHG�RQO\�XSRQ�WKH�UHYLHZ�E\�DQG�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�GHVLJQDWHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RI�
WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW��6XFK�ZDLYHU�PXVW�EH�LQ�ZULWLQJ�

E� $�PLQLPXP�RI�RQH�IRRW���¶��FOHDUDQFH�EHORZ�H[LVWLQJ�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�IDFLOLWLHV�PXVW�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�

F� $W�DOO�FURVVLQJV�RI�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�WLOH�OLQHV�ZLWK�WKH�SURSRVHG�XWLOLW\��RQH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PXVW�EH�XVHG�

L� 5HSODFH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�WLOH�ZLWK�UHLQIRUFHG�FRQFUHWH�SLSH�RI�VDPH�RU�ODUJHU�GLDPHWHU�WKDQ�
H[LVWLQJ�WLOH��&RQFUHWH�SLSH�WR�EH�������'�VWUHQJWK��,RZD�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�DSSURYHG��
ZLWK�VWDQGDUG�WRQJXH�DQG�JURRYH�MRLQWV��3LSH�WR�KDYH�D�PLQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�����EROW�W\SH�FRQQHFWRUV�
DW�HDFK�MRLQW�

LL� 5HSODFH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�WLOH�ZLWK�FDWKRGLF�SURWHFWHG�FRUUXJDWHG�PHWDO�SLSH��'LDPHWHU�RI�
FRUUXJDWHG�PHWDO�SLSH�WR�EH�D�PLQLPXP�RI�WZR�LQFKHV���´��ODUJHU�WKDQ�RXWVLGH�GLDPHWHU�RI�WLOH�OLQH�
EHLQJ�UHSODFHG���6SHFLILFDWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�JDJH��FDWKRGLF�SURWHFWLRQ�DQG�RWKHU�GHWDLOV�WR�EH�VXEMHFW�
WR�UHYLHZ�DQG�DSSURYDO��

LLL� 'XDO�ZDOO�SODVWLF�ZLWK�VSHFLILF�DSSURYDO�RI�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�

LY� %RUH�QHZ�XWLOLW\�LQVWDOODWLRQ��PDLQWDLQ�H[LVWLQJ�WLOH�LQ�DQ�XQGLVWXUEHG�VWDWH�

G� 7KH�OHQJWK�RI�WLOH�WR�EH�UHSODFHG�E\�DQ\�RI�WKH�DERYH�DOWHUQDWHV�LV�DV�IROORZV�

L� (LJKW�LQFK���´��WLOH�DQG�VPDOOHU��6L[�IHHW���¶��HLWKHU�VLGH�RI�FHQWHUOLQH�RI�SURSRVHG�LQVWDOODWLRQ��
PHDVXUHG�DW�ULJKW�DQJOHV�WR�WKH�FHQWHUOLQH�RI�LQVWDOODWLRQ�

LL� 7HQ�LQFK����´��WLOH�DQG�ODUJHU��7HQ�IHHW����¶��HLWKHU�VLGH�RI�FHQWHUOLQH�RI�SURSRVHG�LQVWDOODWLRQ��
PHDVXUHG�DW�ULJKW�DQJOHV�WR�WKH�FHQWHUOLQH�RI�LQVWDOODWLRQ�

H� $W�DOO�FURVVLQJV�RI�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�WLOH�OLQHV�ZKHUH�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFW�DQG�SULYDWH�WLOH�OLQHV�DUH�
GDPDJHG�E\�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��PDLQWHQDQFH�RU�UHSDLU�RI�$SSOLFDQWV�LQVWDOODWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�UHSDLUHG�DV�
GLUHFWHG�E\�WKH�'UDLQDJH�'LVWULFWV�GHVLJQDWHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�

��� 7KLV�SHUPLW�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�H[LVWLQJ�UHJXODWLRQV�DQG�VWDWXWHV�RI�WKH�6WDWH�RI�,RZD�DQG�IXWXUH�UHJXODWLRQV��ZKLFK�PD\�
EH�SURPXOJDWHG�RU�HQDFWHG�

��� 7KLV�DSSOLFDWLRQ�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�UHYRFDWLRQ�E\�+DUGLQ�&RXQW\��LI�LQ�LWV�MXGJPHQW�LW�LV�QHFHVVDU\�IRU�OHJLWLPDWH�
SXUSRVHV��,Q�VXFK�HYHQW��ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH�VKDOO�EH�SURYLGHG�WR�SHUPLW�KROGHU�

��� $SSOLFDQW�DJUHHV�WR�SD\�DOO�RWKHU�OHJLWLPDWH�FRVWV��IHHV�DQG�H[SHQVHV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�LWV�FURVVLQJ�RI�WKH�'UDLQDJH�
'LVWULFW�IDFLOLW\��LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��SXEOLFDWLRQ�FRVWV��HQJLQHHULQJ�FRVWV�DQG�OHJDO�VHUYLFH�FRVWV��6DLG�FRVWV�
ZLOO�EH�SDLG�ZLWKLQ WKLUW\������GD\V�RI�WKH�PDLOLQJ�RI�WKH�VWDWHPHQWV�WR�WKH�$SSOLFDQW�

��� $SSOLFDQW�DJUHHV�WR�SURYLGH�D�FRS\�RI�DV�EXLOW�SODQ�RI�WKH�XWLOLW\�URXWH�DQG�ORFDWLRQ��VKRZLQJ�URXWH�FKDQJHV�WKDW�
PD\�KDYH�WDNHQ�SODFH�GXULQJ�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�

��� $SSOLFDQW�DJUHHV�WR�LQFOXGH�D FRS\�RI�WKHVH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�WR�DOO�ELGGLQJ�VSHFLILFDWLRQV��RU�LI�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�
LQVWDOODWLRQ�FRQWUDFW�KDV�EHHQ�OHW�E\�WKH�WLPH�WKLV�SHUPLW�LV�DSSURYHG��$SSOLFDQW�DJUHHV�WR�SURYLGH�D�FRS\�RI�WKHVH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFWRU�DQG�WR�DGYLVH�WKHP�WKDW WKH\�DUH�ERXQG�E\�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKHVH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�




